

**OFFICIAL JOURNAL**  
OF THE  
**HOUSE OF**  
**REPRESENTATIVES**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

**TWELFTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS**

**Fortieth Regular Session of the Legislature  
Under the Adoption of the  
Constitution of 1974**

House of Representatives  
State Capitol  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Thursday, March 27, 2014

The House of Representatives was called to order at 9:00 A.M., by the Honorable Chuck Kleckley, Speaker of the House of Representatives.

**Morning Hour**

**ROLL CALL**

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

**PRESENT**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Montoucet
Abramson	Gisclair	Moreno
Anders	Greene	Morris, Jay
Arnold	Guillory	Norton
Badon	Guinn	Ortego
Barras	Harris	Pearson
Barrow	Harrison	Pierre
Berthelot	Havard	Ponti
Billiot	Hazel	Pope
Bishop, S.	Henry	Price
Bishop, W.	Hensgens	Pugh
Broadwater	Hill	Pylant
Brossett	Hodges	Reynolds
Brown	Hoffmann	Richard
Burford	Honore	Ritchie
Burns, H.	Howard	Robideaux
Burns, T.	Hunter	Schexnayder
Burrell	Huval	Schroder
Carmody	Ivey	Seabaugh
Carter	Jackson	Shadoin
Champagne	James	Simon
Chaney	Jefferson	Smith
Connick	Johnson	St. Germain
Cox	Jones	Stokes
Cromer	Lambert	Talbot
Danahay	Landry, T.	Thibaut
Dixon	LeBas	Thierry
Dove	Leger	Whitney
Fannin	Leopold	Williams, A.
Foil	Lorusso	Williams, P.
Franklin	Mack	Willmott
Gaines	Miller	Woodruff

Total - 96

The Speaker announced that there were 96 members present and a quorum.

**Prayer**

Prayer was offered by Archbishop Gregory Aymond.

**Pledge of Allegiance**

Rep. Guinn led the House in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

**Reading of the Journal**

On motion of Rep. Hill, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with.

On motion of Rep. Hill, the Journal of March 26, 2014, was adopted.

**Introduction of House Bills  
and Joint Resolutions**

The following named members introduced the following House Bills and Joint Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 950—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE ALFRED WILLIAMS  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:9097.20(B) and (F)(1) and (2) and to repeal R.S. 33:9097.20(F)(3), relative to the Goodwood Homesites Crime Prevention and Neighborhood Improvement District; to provide relative to the boundaries of the district; to provide a reduced parcel fee for certain parcels; to provide for the maximum parcel fee the district may levy and collect; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1071—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CHANEY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:8(16), relative to resident status for purchase of hunting and fishing licenses; to reduce the time required to qualify as a resident for the purchase of hunting licenses; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**House and House Concurrent Resolutions  
Lying Over**

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions lying over were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 42—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE GUINN  
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate the community of Thornwell in Jefferson Davis Parish as the Yellow Rail Capital of the World and to recognize the Yellow Rails and Rice Festival held in Thornwell, Louisiana.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**Senate Concurrent Resolutions  
Lying Over**

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions lying over were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 32—**  
BY SENATOR PERRY

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend Vermilion Catholic High School Eagles on winning the Division IV State Football Championship.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Hensgens, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 35—**  
BY SENATOR DORSEY-COLOMB AND REPRESENTATIVE BADON

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To recognize April 2, 2014, as Mayor's Day at the Louisiana State Capitol.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Badon, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 42—**  
BY SENATORS GARY SMITH AND BROWN AND REPRESENTATIVES GAINES, MILLER AND WILLMOTT

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend Ajit "AJ" Pethe of St. Charles Parish Public Schools upon being selected the 2014 Louisiana Principal of the Year and to recognize his outstanding service and contributions to the education of the youth of Louisiana.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Miller, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 43—**  
BY SENATOR CROWE

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate the week of April 6 through 12, 2014, as "Junior Auxiliary Week" at the Louisiana Legislature.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Pearson, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 45—**  
BY SENATOR LONG AND REPRESENTATIVE BROWN

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend William "Bill" Brent as the inaugural inductee in the Mrs. H. D. Dear Sr. and Alice E. Dear School of Creative and Performing Arts Hall of Fame and recognize his many years of dedicated service to Northwestern State University.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Brown, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading to be Referred**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred to committees were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1066—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMPSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1379.3(C)(1) and (17) and (K), relative to qualifications for concealed handgun permits; to provide for the submission of certain information for persons

seeking a concealed handgun permit who are not United States citizens; to require a federal background check before issuing a concealed handgun permit; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1067—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LAMBERT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1722(A), 1723(A), and 1730.49(C) and to enact R.S. 40:1722(C), relative to sustainable building standards or codes used by the office of facility planning and control; to provide that any rules promulgated by the office of facility planning and control about the Louisiana Building Code for State Owned Buildings recognize certain initiative and certification programs in achieving sustainable building standards; to provide that certain state-funded facility projects recognize certain initiative and certification programs in achieving sustainable building standards; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Commerce.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1068—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE SMITH  
AN ACT

To enact Chapter 43 of Title 46 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 46:2551 through 2553, relative to sex education programs; to provide for legislative findings; to require certain agencies to meet and review state programs aimed at reducing teen pregnancy and preventing the spread of sexually transmitted diseases; to require the agencies to review available programs aimed at reducing teen pregnancy and preventing the spread of sexually transmitted diseases; to require a written report to the legislature; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1069—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES BROADWATER AND HENRY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 23:1021(13)(e) through (g) and to enact R.S. 23:1021(13)(h), relative to workers' compensation; to provide with respect to average weekly wage; to provide for the calculation of average weekly wage for employees with variable wage employment contracts; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Labor and Industrial Relations.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1070—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BROSSETT  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 38:2225.1(B)(3), relative to public work contracts let by certain parish governing authorities; to provide for hiring preferences; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on  
Second Reading to be Referred**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

**SENATE BILL NO. 48—**

BY SENATOR JOHN SMITH

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:447.13, relative to the mayor's court of the town of Rosepine; to authorize an increase in court costs for violations of municipal ordinances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 51—**

BY SENATOR MARTINY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 51:1304(C)(4), 1305(A), the introductory paragraph of 1305(B), 1305(C), and 1309(B), and to repeal R.S. 51:1302(7), relative to the Louisiana Tax Free Shopping Program; to remove the authority of the program to charge participating retailers a membership fee; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

**SENATE BILL NO. 52—**

BY SENATOR JOHN SMITH

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:447.13, relative to courts; to increase authorized court costs for municipal ordinance violations in the mayor's court of the town of Anacoco; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 56—**

BY SENATOR NEVERS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3167.1, relative to the articulation and transfer of academic credit hours across all public educational institutions in Louisiana; to require secondary and postsecondary education management boards to participate in regular meetings regarding articulation and transfer policies and agreements; to provide relative to the purpose and outcomes of such meetings; to provide for reporting; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**SENATE BILL NO. 59—**

BY SENATOR JOHN SMITH AND REPRESENTATIVE HILL

AN ACT

To repeal Part I-A of Chapter 4 of Title 12 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 12:431 and 431.1, relative to the Beauregard Electric Cooperative; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 88—**

BY SENATOR ALARIO

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 49:191(7) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(5)(a), relative to the Department of the Treasury, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Department of the Treasury and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the effective termination date for all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

**SENATE BILL NO. 97—**

BY SENATOR NEVERS

AN ACT

To repeal Subpart B-35 of Part IV of Chapter I of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 33:130.701 through 130.709, relative to the Tangipahoa Parish Economic Development District; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 125—**

BY SENATORS NEVERS, APPEL, GUILLORY, LAFLEUR, WALSWORTH AND WHITE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:185.4 and to enact R.S. 17:185.5 and 185.6 and R.S. 36:651(G)(4), relative to agricultural education; to create the Agricultural Education Commission and provide for its membership, compensation, duties, staffing, and meetings; to provide for the creation of an agricultural education immersion pilot program; to provide relative to funding and effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**SENATE BILL NO. 126—**

BY SENATOR NEVERS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:3048.5(B)(1), (D), (F) and (G), relative to the TOPS-Tech Early Start Award; to provide for purpose; to provide for eligibility; to provide for reporting; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**SENATE BILL NO. 152—**

BY SENATOR JOHN SMITH

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:4643.1, relative to the board of control; to provide for an increase in membership on the Beauregard Parish War Memorial Civic Center; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 174—**  
BY SENATORS PETERSON, APPEL, MARTINY AND GARY SMITH AND REPRESENTATIVES BILLIOT, LEOPOLD, LORUSSO, WILLMOTT AND WOODRUFF

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:4762(C), 4764(A), and 4765(C), relative to the removal of dangerous structures; to provide for notice to the owner; to provide for certain action to appeal decision; to provide for certain notification in cases of grave public emergencies; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 177—**  
BY SENATOR APPEL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:3351(A)(3), relative to the powers, duties, and functions of public postsecondary education management boards; to provide relative to the authority of such boards with respect to the allocation and expenditure of appropriated funds; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Education.

**SENATE BILL NO. 212—**  
BY SENATORS WARD, CHABERT, LONG, MORRISH AND WALSWORTH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:116.1(B)(3) and (H), to enact R.S. 56:116.1(I), and to repeal R.S. 56:116.1(D)(3), relative to the taking of wild quadrupeds; to provide for the use of firearm sound suppressors when taking wild quadrupeds; to provide certain penalties; to provide for the use of night vision devices; to provide terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 234—**  
BY SENATOR JOHN SMITH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:448(D), relative to mayor's courts; to provide relative to court costs for municipal ordinance violations in the mayor's court of the town of New Llano; to provide for the remission of certain funds; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 246—**  
BY SENATOR MORRISH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:495(A)(3) and (4) and to enact R.S. 56:495(A)(4.1) and (4.2) and (E), relative to shrimping; to provide for the inside and outside shrimp line; to alter the line to conform to the existing coastline after changes resultant from coastal erosion and subsidence; to allow the Louisiana Wildlife

and Fisheries Commission to amend the demarcation line; to provide terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 251—**  
BY SENATOR WARD

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:116.2, relative to the sale or purchase of wild birds and wild quadrupeds; to provide prohibitions on the sale, purchase, trade, barter, or exchange or attempt to sell, purchase, trade, barter, or exchange of certain wild birds and wild quadrupeds; to provide certain exemptions; to provide terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 253—**  
BY SENATOR MORRISH

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 13:5722(A)(2)(d) and R.S. 15:571.11(A)(3) and to repeal R.S. 13:1000.7, relative to the Thirty-First Judicial District Court; to provide for an increase in certain criminal court costs; to provide for disposition of collections; to repeal nullified provisions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 262—**  
BY SENATOR NEVERS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:4305 (B)(4), relative to the Washington Parish Gas Utility District No. 2 board members; to provide for a maximum amount of per diem paid to board members for each meeting; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 320—**  
BY SENATOR DONAHUE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:1990(B)(1)(d) and R.S. 39:126, relative to capital outlay projects; to provide for certain change orders to be approved by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

**SENATE BILL NO. 369—**  
BY SENATOR WALSWORTH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:325(B)(3), relative to the possession limit for crappie in certain water bodies; to provide a fifty fish limit for crappie caught on Lake D'Arbonne; to provide terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 417—**

BY SENATOR GARY SMITH

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:707(O), relative to the application for certificate of title of motor vehicles; to provide for requirement of certificate of title on a water damaged vehicle; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**SENATE BILL NO. 430—**

BY SENATOR WALSWORTH

AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in Union Parish; to provide for the property description; to provide for reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 435—**

BY SENATOR PERRY

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:338.212, relative to the city of Scott; to authorize the city to levy a hotel occupancy tax; to provide for the use of tax revenues; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 461—**

BY SENATORS PEACOCK AND LAFLEUR

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Civil Procedure Art. 3191, relative to administration of successions; to provide relative to certain functions, powers, and duties of a succession representative; to provide relative to terms and definitions; to provide with respect to electronic assets of a decedent; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on  
Second Reading Reported by Committee**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading reported by committee were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 140—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MONTOUCKET

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:302.2(B) and to enact R.S. 56:104(B)(1), relative to fees for hunting and fishing licenses; to exempt from payment of such fees Louisiana natives who are retired from the United States Armed Forces; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1072** (Substitute for House Bill No. 140 by Representative Montoucet)—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MONTOUCKET

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 56:643(C), relative to issuance of hunting and fishing licenses; to provide for a reduced fee for certain retired members of the U.S. Armed Forces; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1072 by Rep. Montoucet, on behalf of the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment, as a substitute for House Bill No. 140 by Rep. Montoucet.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 168—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES HOFFMANN, COX, HENSGENS, HILL, KATRINA JACKSON, POPE, STOKES, AND WILLMOTT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1300.252, 1300.256(A)(4), and 1300.262(B)(1)(a) and (2)(a) and to enact R.S. 40:1263 and 1300.256(A)(5), relative to smoking regulation; to prohibit smoking in certain outdoor areas proximate to state office buildings; to provide relative to the purpose of certain smoking regulations; to provide for applicability; to provide for penalties; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 168 by Representative Hoffmann

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 6, delete "to provide for exceptions;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 12, after "regulation;" delete the remainder of the line and insert "enforcement"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, line 1, after "state" and before "building" insert "office"

On motion of Rep. Simon, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Simon, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 180—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE DOVE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:3402(D)(1), relative to Montessori schools; to authorize the extension of Montessori school programs through high school; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 186—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES HENRY AND FOIL  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:116.1(B)(3), to enact R.S. 56:116.6, and to repeal R.S. 56:116.1(D)(3), relative to hunting; to provide for hunting game birds, wild quadrupeds, outlaw quadrupeds, nutria, and beaver; to provide for hunting with sound suppressing devices; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 242—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ARMES  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:419.3, relative to school support personnel; to provide with respect to compensation for school support personnel who serve as substitute teachers; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 320—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE GREENE  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 22:1295(1)(a)(v), relative to rejection of uninsured motorist coverage; to require an employer who rejects uninsured motorist coverage for vehicles provided to employees to provide the employees notice of the rejection; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 320 by Representative Greene

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, after "rejection;" insert the following:

"to provide that an employer is not required to obtain uninsured motorist coverage on a motor vehicle provided to an employee; to provide that the employer and insurer have no liability for failure to provide uninsured motorist coverage on a motor vehicle provided to an employee;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 15, after "coverage," delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"An employer is not required to provide uninsured motorist coverage on an employer-provided vehicle and neither the employer nor the insurer shall be liable for any damages or liability for uninsured motorist coverage resulting from the failure to provide the notice required herein."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, delete lines 16 through 19 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, delete lines 1 through 2 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 332—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LOPINTO  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:966(B)(1) and (C)(1), relative to the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Law; to amend penalties for certain offenses; to provide for minimum mandatory sentence; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 344—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ARMES  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 56:104(B)(3) and 302.2(D), relative to fees for hunting and fishing licenses; to provide relative to fees to be paid by surviving spouses of members of certain military service branches killed in action; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to Original House Bill No. 344 by Representative Armes

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 13, after "action" and before the comma " ," insert "while in a combat zone"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 3, after "action" and before the comma " ," insert "while in a combat zone"

On motion of Rep. Dove, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 353—**BY REPRESENTATIVES BURFORD AND THOMPSON AND SENATOR  
BUFFINGTON

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:116.1(D)(2), relative to taking of outlaw quadrupeds, nutria, and beaver; to allow the taking of feral hogs at any time throughout the year; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to Original House Bill No. 353 by Representative Burford

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 15 and 16 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"last day of August of that same year; and, except for the use of dogs at night during the period from September 1<sup>st</sup> through the last day of February, may take feral hogs by any means at any time of the year, during"

On motion of Rep. Dove, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 401—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BARRAS

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact Subparagraph (e) of Paragraph 9 of Article XIV, Section 15.1 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1921, made statutory by Article X, Section 18 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, R.S. 4:169(A)(1), R.S. 6:664(B)(1), R.S. 9:4822(M)(1), R.S. 11:243(B)(1), (C), (D), and (E), 449(A)(introductory paragraph) and (B), 450(B), 1302.2(A)(1) and (2)(introductory paragraph), 1422(C)(1), 1821(B), and 2096(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), R.S. 13:5077(A), R.S. 14:35, 38, 38.1, 40, 46, 51, 53, 54.2, 55, 56.1, 57, 58, 60, 62.2, 70, 73, 76, 77, 87.1, 87.2, 87.4, 88, 91.12, 91.21, 96, 97, 99, 100.1, 101, 107.2(A), 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 118.1, 119.1(A), 124, 125, 126.1, 126.2, 129.2, 131, 139, 201, 203, 204, 205, 206, 208, 209, 210, 213, 222(A), (B), and (C), 226(B) and (C), 311, 312, 313.1, 314, 315, 318, 319, 320, 321, 322, 329.1, 329.3, 329.4, 351, 354, 355, 356, 357, and 401, R.S. 21:203(6), R.S. 22:691.4(F)(1)(a), R.S. 23:1203.1(H), (I), and (N), R.S. 36:651(CC), R.S. 37:961(1) and (3), 1033(F), and 2156(C)(2), R.S. 38:2212(D)(2), R.S. 39:1798.6(A)(2)(b), R.S. 40:4(A)(3)(b), 47(B), 531(A)(3), 537(B), 1563.1(B), and 2161(Section heading), R.S. 42:19.1(A)(1), R.S. 44:4(4)(b), (c), and (d) and (14), R.S. 46:2(A) and (B), 446.6(Section heading), 448(A) and (E), 460.51(9), 2351(A)(6) through (9), and 2402(4), R.S. 49:222(B)(1)(d), (2)(b), and (3)(c), 953(F)(3)(h), 954(A) and (B)(2), 954.1(D), 966(A), 1101(C), and 1304(B)(1), R.S. 56:424(F)(2), 633(C), and 1703(C)(2)(a) through (d), Code of Civil Procedure Article 1702(C), and Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 410(C) and 725.1(B), relative to the provisions of the Louisiana Constitution of 1921 made statutory by Article X, Section 18 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, the Code of Civil Procedure, and the Code of Criminal Procedure; to provide for various technical corrections, including correcting legal

citations, correcting names of agencies, department offices, and other entities, designating undesignated statutory provisions, removing references to provisions that have been repealed, correcting punctuation, correcting typographical errors, making conforming changes, and clarifying language; to direct the Louisiana State Law Institute to make certain technical changes in the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 401 by Representative Barras

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "9:4822(M)(1)," delete "R.S. 13:5077(A),"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the end of line 7, insert "R.S. 13:5077(A),"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 12, line 12, after "unlawful for any person" delete the comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 15, line 21, after "under this" delete "article" and insert "Section"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 16, line 5, after "provisions of this" delete "article" and insert "Section"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 38, line 16, after "accordance with" insert "R.S."

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 47, line 15, after "hold" and before "office" delete "his or her"

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 409—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CHAMPAGNE

## AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 24:513(A)(4)(a)(vi) and (b) and to enact R.S. 24:513(A)(4)(a)(vii) and (c), relative to the legislative auditor; to provide relative to the authority and duties of the legislative auditor; to authorize the legislative auditor to audit or investigate certain local auditees under certain circumstances; to provide for reimbursement for certain audits; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

# Page 8 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 439—** BY REPRESENTATIVE GREENE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 24:523 and to enact R.S. 24:524, relative to misappropriation of public funds or assets; to require certain notifications by agency heads; to provide for recovery of misappropriated funds and for restitution of related costs; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 439 by Representative Greene

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, between lines 11 and 12, insert the following:

"B. The attorney general may also seek recovery from the responsible party of all costs and reasonable attorney fees incurred by the attorney general in a civil suit instituted at the request of the legislative auditor as provided in Subsection A of this Section."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, at the beginning of line 12, change "B." to "C."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, between lines 13 and 14, insert the following:

"D. If costs are recovered pursuant to this Section for an audit that were previously reimbursed pursuant to R.S. 24:517.1 or 517.3, those costs shall be paid to the appropriate public or quasi public entity."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, at the beginning of line 14, change "C." to "E."

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 442—** BY REPRESENTATIVE HAZEL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:440.2(A)(1), relative to recorded statements of protected persons; to amend provisions regarding the authorization to record the statement of a protected person; to provide for the procedure by which a court may consent to the videotaped interview of protected persons; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 1073** (Substitute for House Bill No. 442 by Representative Hazel)— BY REPRESENTATIVE HAZEL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:440.2(A)(1), relative to recorded statements of protected persons; to amend provisions regarding the authorization to record the statement of a protected person; to authorize the recording of statements of protected persons without the necessity of a court order by either local court rule or execution of a written protocol; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1073 by Rep. Hazel, on behalf of the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice, as a substitute for House Bill No. 442 by Rep. Hazel.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 447—** BY REPRESENTATIVE PYLANT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 34:851.15(D), relative to operation of motorboats on a portion of Lake Louis and Bayou Louis; to prohibit waterskiing on certain waterbodies; to restrict the use of personal watercraft on certain waterbodies; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to Original House Bill No. 447 by Representative Pylant

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, change "waterskiing;" to "operation of motorboats on a portion of Lake Louis and Bayou Louis;"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "waterbodies;" insert "to restrict the use of personal watercraft on certain waterbodies;"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 9, change "Louie" to "Louis"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 10, after "from" insert "latitude 31degrees 47 minutes 42.6 seconds, longitude N. 91degrees 40 minutes 57.7 seconds W., known locally as" and after ""Rocks"" insert a comma ","

#### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, at the end of line 10, change "Louie." to "Louis." and insert "Additionally, no person shall operate a personal watercraft, as defined in R.S. 34:855.2, above bare steerage speed, the slowest speed the vessel can travel while allowing the operator to maintain directional control to produce the minimum water surface turbulence."



in the portion of Lake Louis and Bayou Louis provided for in this Subsection."

On motion of Rep. Dove, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 464—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES BROADWATER AND PUGH  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 46:311 through 318, relative to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program; to create and provide for a pilot initiative for training and education to serve certain nutrition assistance recipients; to provide for duties of participants in the pilot initiative and of the Department of Children and Family Services; to provide for redesignation of laws; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 464 by Representative Broadwater

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, line 14, delete "three-month" and insert in lieu thereof "six-month"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 19, delete "three" and insert in lieu thereof "six"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, line 23, delete "three" and insert in lieu thereof "six"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 4, line 26, delete "three" and insert in lieu thereof "six"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 5, line 23, delete "three month" and insert in lieu thereof "six-month"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 6, line 11, delete "three" and insert in lieu thereof "six"

On motion of Rep. Simon, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Simon, the above bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Appropriations.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 513—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HENRY  
AN ACT

To enact Part LXXV of Chapter 5 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1300.381 through 1300.382, relative to chromosome deletion disorders; to provide for definitions; to provide for dissemination of information regarding velocardiocardial syndrome and 22q11.2 deletion syndrome; to provide for rulemaking authority; to

authorize the use of available resources for cost containment; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Health and Welfare to Original House Bill No. 513 by Representative Henry

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, after "definitions; to" delete "require" and insert in lieu thereof "provide for"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 15, delete "be"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 24, after "provider" delete "shall" and insert in lieu thereof "may"

On motion of Rep. Simon, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Simon, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 514—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HENRY  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:962.1.2, relative to nonprescription products containing dextromethorphan; to prohibit the selling, purchasing, or attempting to purchase products containing dextromethorphan by minors; to provide for criminal penalties; to provide for preemption of local ordinances regulating the same matters; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 514 by Representative Henry

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 21, after "than" and before "fifty" delete "two hundred"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, at the end of line 22, after "than" and before "hundred" delete "five" and insert "one"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 23, after "than" and before "hundred" delete "seven" and insert "one"

# Page 10 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 24, after "third" delete the remainder of the line and insert "and any"

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 555—** BY REPRESENTATIVES HENRY AND RICHARD AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3913, relative to student information; to limit the type of information to be collected on students; to prohibit the collection of certain information; to prohibit the transmittal or sharing of student information without parental consent; to provide exceptions; to require the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education to promulgate rules to provide a process for obtaining consent from parents for the sharing of student information; to provide definitions; to provide criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 562—** BY REPRESENTATIVE LOPINTO AN ACT

To enact R.S. 15:824(B)(1)(e), relative to housing of inmates; to provide relative to the housing of persons committed to the custody of the Department of Public Safety and Corrections who are released on parole and are subsequently arrested; to require the department to reimburse sheriffs for the housing of these inmates in parish jails; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 562 by Representative Lopinto

## AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "jails;" and before "and" insert "to provide for effectiveness;"

## AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

"(e)(i) For Fiscal Year 2014 -2015, for any person committed to the department who is released on parole and who is subsequently arrested and housed in a parish jail while awaiting a parole revocation hearing, the department shall reimburse the sheriff, or to the governing authority of those parishes in which the governing authority operates the parish jail, at the rate of fifty percent of an amount equal to the rate provided for in the provisions of Subparagraph (a) of this Paragraph less the sum of any monies received from the parish governing authority for the purpose of

housing such persons pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 13:5535(1), for each day that the person is housed in the parish jail from the time of arrest until the person either pleads guilty to the subsequent charge or until the committee on parole makes its determination regarding parole revocation, whichever occurs first."

## AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, delete line 13 in its entirety and insert the following:

"(ii) For Fiscal Year 2015 -2016, and thereafter, for any person committed to the department who is released on parole"

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 19, after "persons" and before the comma " ," insert "pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 13:5535(1)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, after line 3, add the following:

"Section 2. The provisions of this Act shall be effective upon the appropriation of funds for such purpose."

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the above bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on Appropriations.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 610—** BY REPRESENTATIVE ABRAMSON AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:3200(9), 3205(B), 3208(B), 3209, 3210(C) and (D), 3211, and 3218, relative to radiologic technologists; to amend the definition of "radiologic technologist"; to provide for meetings of the Louisiana Radiologic Technology Board of Examiners; to provide for the qualification of applicants for licensure; to require a certification examination; to require payment of fees prior to licensure; to authorize the board to promulgate a fee schedule; to make technical changes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

On motion of Rep. Simon, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 672—** BY REPRESENTATIVE WHITNEY AN ACT

To enact R.S. 37:1276.2, relative to visiting physicians; to require exemption from licensure by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners in certain cases of out-of-state physicians traveling with sports teams; to allow for exemption from licensure by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners in certain cases of out-of-state physicians traveling for events sanctioned by the United States Olympic Committee; to provide for limitations and restrictions of practice by visiting physicians; to provide for consent to treatment in certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1074** (Substitute for House Bill No. 672 by Representative Whitney)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE WHITNEY

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 37:1291(6), relative to physicians who attend to out-of-state athletic teams; to provide for exemptions to certain physician licensure requirements in specified cases; to provide for construction; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Simon, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1074 by Rep. Whitney, on behalf of the Committee on Health and Welfare, as a substitute for House Bill No. 672 by Rep. Whitney.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 690—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADWATER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 38:2212.1(N), relative to group purchasing of school materials, equipment, and supplies; to authorize public school districts and public schools to participate in a purchasing cooperative for the purchase of school materials, equipment, and supplies; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 690 by Representative Broadwater

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 19, after "profit," and before "which" change "to" to "of"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, after line 2, add the following:

"(4) A school district purchasing cooperative shall use the following request for proposals process in the solicitation of vendors for materials, equipment, and supplies:

(a) Public notice shall be given by the placement of an advertisement in the official journal of the state at least once. Advertisements may also be placed in other newspapers, trade journals, and websites at the discretion of the cooperative.

(b) The notice shall include the nature of the materials, equipment, or supplies sought and may include information on the estimated quantity sought and the time frame for purchase by the members of the cooperative.

(c) The advertisement shall appear at least fifteen days before the last day that proposals may be submitted.

(d) The notice shall be provided at least fifteen days before the last day for proposals to be accepted to persons, firms, or companies that have requested to be notified of requests for proposals.

(e) The notice shall include information with regard to the deadline for submission of proposals and contact information for questions concerning the solicitation.

(f) The responsible and responsive proposal that provides the lowest price shall be selected.

(g) The selected vendor shall agree to make the subject materials, equipment, or supplies available for the price set forth in the proposal to any member of the school district purchasing cooperative."

On motion of Rep. Carter, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 728—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE KATRINA JACKSON  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 41:907, relative to the exchange of school lands; to authorize Ouachita Parish School Board to exchange certain school lands; to provide procedures for such exchange; to provide for the reservation of mineral rights; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 741—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LOPINTO  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 559(A), relative to the withdrawal of a guilty plea; to require a contradictory hearing on any motion to withdraw a guilty plea; to authorize the state to waive the contradictory hearing; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 747—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES MORENO AND BROSSETT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:35.3(B)(3), (4), and (5), (C), (D), (J) and (M) and Code of Criminal Procedure Article 334.2, to enact R.S. 14:2(B)(45) and (46) and 35.3(B)(6), and to repeal Code of Criminal Procedure Article 334.4(A)(4), relative to acts of domestic abuse; to designate domestic abuse battery and domestic abuse aggravated assault as crimes of violence; to provide relative to the crime of domestic abuse battery; to amend penalty provisions of domestic abuse battery for purposes of persons placed on probation; to provide for a definition of "court-approved domestic abuse intervention programs" for purposes of persons on probation for domestic abuse battery; to amend penalties for a second conviction of domestic abuse battery; to provide relative to the designation of an act of violence against a family member as "domestic abuse"; to prohibit release on a person's own recognizance after an arrest for certain offenses related to domestic violence; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

# Page 12 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

## HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 747 by Representative Moreno

### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "(D)," delete the remainder of the line and insert "(H), and (J) and Code of"

### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "R.S. 14:2(B)(45)" and before "and 35.3(B)(6)" delete "and (46)"

### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 5, after "designate" and before "domestic abuse aggravated" delete "domestic abuse battery and"

### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 6, after "assault as" and before "of violence" change "crimes" to "a crime"

### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 8, after "definition of" and before "domestic" delete "'court-approved" and insert "'court-monitored"

### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, line 16, after "(D)," delete the remainder of the line and insert "(H), and (J) are hereby amended"

### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 1, line 17, after "R.S. 14:2(B)(45)" and before "and 35.3(B)(6)" delete "and (46)"

### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, delete line 9 in its entirety

### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, at the beginning of line 10, change "(46)" to "(45)"

### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 2, delete line 16 in its entirety and insert the following:

"(3) "Court-monitored domestic abuse intervention program" means a twenty-six week course provided by the Department of Children and Family Services or other provider which follows a national model and is"

### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 2, line 19, after "perpetrators" and before "victims" delete "or" and insert "and"

### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 3, line 16, after "participate in a" and before "domestic" delete "court-approved" and insert "court-monitored"

### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 3, line 21, after "participate in a" and before "domestic" delete "court-approved" and insert "court-monitored"

### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 3, line 27, after "imprisoned" and before "for" change "at hard labor" to "with or without hard labor"

### AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 4, delete lines 1 and 2 in their entirety and insert:

"suspension of sentence, and the offender shall be required to participate in a ~~court-approved~~ court-monitored domestic abuse ~~prevention~~ intervention program. Imposition or execution of the"

### AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 4, line 6, after "a" and before "domestic" delete "court-approved" and insert "court-monitored"

### AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 4, line 11, after "a" and before "domestic" delete "court-approved" and insert "court-monitored"

### AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 4, between lines 13 and 14, insert the following:

"\* \* \*

H. An offender ordered to participate in a court-monitored domestic abuse ~~prevention~~ intervention program required by the provisions of this Section shall pay the cost incurred in participation in the program. Failure to make such payment shall subject the offender to revocation of probation, unless the court determines that the offender is unable to pay."

### AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 4, delete lines 20 through 24 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 750—** BY REPRESENTATIVES MORENO AND BROSETT AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 9:366(A) and 372(B) and (C), R.S. 14:79(B), (C), (E), and (F), R.S. 46:2135(G) and (H), 2136(E), (G), and (H), 2136.2(A) and (D), and 2140, Children's Code Articles 1569(H) and (I) and 1570(E), (G), and (H), Code of Civil Procedure Article 3607.1, and Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 30(B), 327.1, 335.2(C), and 871.1 and to enact R.S. 14:79(A)(3)(d), relative to protective orders issued in conjunction with cases of domestic abuse; to provide relative to the procedures for filing Uniform Abuse Prevention Orders in the Louisiana Protective Order Registry; to provide relative to the duties of judges and the Judicial Administrator's Office of the Louisiana Supreme Court relative to the issuance of temporary restraining orders, preliminary or permanent injunctions, and protective orders; to amend the crime of violation of protective orders to include the willful disobedience of a Uniform Abuse Prevention Order; to provide relative to the penalties for violations of protective orders; to provide relative to the duty of law enforcement with regard to enforcing protective orders and violations of protective orders; to provide relative to the determination by law enforcement of the predominant aggressor in domestic abuse cases; to provide for a rebuttable presumption regarding the predominant aggressor; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 750 by Representative Moreno

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 6, after "871.1" and before the comma "," delete "and to enact R.S. 14:79(A)(3)(d)"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 9, after "judges" and before "and" insert a comma "," and insert "clerks of court,"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 12, after "orders;" delete the remainder of the line

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, at the beginning of line 13, delete "disobedience of a Uniform Abuse Prevention Order;"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete lines 9 through 21 in their entirety and insert the following:

"order, and shall immediately forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~ The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail,~~ or direct electronic input, ~~where available,~~ as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, delete lines 28 and 29 in their entirety

#### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, delete lines 1 through 12 in their entirety and insert the following:

"shall immediately forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

C. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail,~~ or direct electronic input, ~~where available,~~ as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk

of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, line 13, after "reenacted" delete "and"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, at the beginning of line 14, delete "R.S. 14:79(A)(3)(d) is hereby enacted"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, delete line 16

#### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, delete lines 18 through 22 in their entirety

#### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 3, line 24, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 3, line 29, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 4, line 10, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 4, at the beginning of line 11, delete "violence pursuant to"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 4, line 23, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 4, at the beginning of line 24, delete "violence pursuant to"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 5, line 6, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 5, at the beginning of line 7, delete "violence pursuant to"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 5, line 22, after "or any" delete the remainder of the line and insert "crime of violence as defined by"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 5, at the beginning of line 23, delete "violence pursuant to"

# Page 14 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

## AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 6, line 16, after "shall" and before "person" delete "immediately arrest a" and insert "at a minimum issue a summons to the"

## AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 7, delete lines 3 through 16 in their entirety and insert the following:

"46:2136.2(C), shall sign such order, and shall immediately forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

H. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

## AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 8, delete lines 4 through 17 in their entirety and insert the following:

"forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

H. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

## AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 8, delete lines 28 and 29 in their entirety and on page 9, delete lines 1 through 5 in their entirety and insert the following:

"D. The clerk of the issuing court shall immediately send a copy of the order or any modification thereof to the Louisiana Protective Order Registry as expeditiously as possible but no later than by the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. Transmittal of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order ~~may shall~~ be made by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court."

## AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 10, line 25, after "was" and before the period "." delete "filed" and insert "issued"

## AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 11, delete lines 25 through 29 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 12, delete lines 1 through 9 in their entirety and insert the following:

"forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

I. If a temporary restraining order is issued or extended, the clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

## AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 12, delete lines 24 through 29 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 13, delete lines 1 through 8 in their entirety and insert the following:

"forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

H. If a protective order is issued or modified, or a consent agreement is agreed to or modified, the clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

## AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 13, delete lines 18 through 29 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 14, delete lines 1 through 4 in their entirety and insert the following:

"46:2136.2(C), shall sign such order, and shall immediately forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued.~~

B. Where a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, or permanent injunction relative to domestic abuse or dating violence is issued, dissolved, or modified, the clerk of court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's

Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 14, delete lines 12 through 24 in their entirety and insert the following:

"~~immediately~~ forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued~~. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 15, delete lines 3 through 15 in their entirety and insert the following:

"shall ~~immediately~~ forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued~~. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 15, delete lines 22 through 29 in their entirety

#### AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 16, delete lines 1 through 4 in their entirety and insert the following:

"forward it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued~~. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the

Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 16, delete lines 12 through 23 in their entirety and insert the following:

"it to the clerk of court for filing, ~~all without delay on the day that the order is issued~~. The clerk of the issuing court shall transmit the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to the Judicial Administrator's Office, Louisiana Supreme Court for entry into the Louisiana Protective Order Registry, as provided in R.S. 46:2136.2(A), by facsimile transmission, ~~mail~~, or direct electronic input, ~~where available~~, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than the end of the next business day after the order is filed with the clerk of court. The clerk of the issuing court shall also send a copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order, R.S. 46:2136.2(C), or any modification thereof, to the chief law enforcement official of the parish where the person or persons protected by the order reside. A copy of the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order shall be retained on file in the office of the chief law enforcement officer until otherwise directed by the court."

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 753—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES MORENO AND BROSETT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:95.1(A) and (C) and to enact R.S. 46:2136.3 and 2140(A)(5), relative to the possession of firearms in domestic abuse situations; to prohibit the possession of firearms or carrying of a concealed weapon by persons convicted of domestic abuse battery; to prohibit the possession of firearms by persons who are the subject of protective orders or permanent injunctions involving domestic violence; to require that law enforcement officers seize firearms in certain circumstances; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 753 by Representative Moreno

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete line 2 in its entirety and insert "To enact R.S. 14:95.10 and R.S. 46:2136.3,"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete line 7 in its entirety and insert "to provide for penalties; to"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 10, after "Section 1." delete the remainder of the line and insert "R.S. 14:95.10 is hereby enacted to read as"

# Page 16 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, delete lines 12 through 19 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete lines 1 through 19 in their entirety and insert the following:

"§95.10. Possession of a firearm or carrying of a concealed weapon by a person convicted of domestic abuse battery

A. It is unlawful for any person who has been convicted of the crime of domestic abuse battery to possess a firearm or carry a concealed weapon.

B. Whoever is found guilty of violating the provisions of this Section shall be imprisoned with or without hard labor for not less than one year nor more than five years and shall be fined not less than five hundred dollars nor more than one thousand dollars.

C. A person shall not considered to be convicted of R.S. 14:35.3 for the purposes of this Section unless the person was represented by counsel and convicted by a jury, or the person knowingly and intelligently waived his right to counsel or the right to a jury trial. A person shall not be considered convicted of R.S. 14:35.3 for the purposes of this Section if the conviction has been expunged, set aside, or is an offense for which the person has been pardoned or had civil rights restored unless the pardon, expungement, or restoration of civil rights expressly provides that the person may not ship, possess, or receive firearms.

D. For the provisions of this Section, "firearm" means any pistol, revolver, rifle, shotgun, machine gun, submachine gun, black powder weapon, or assault rifle which is designed to fire or is capable of firing fixed cartridge ammunition or from which a shot or projectile is discharged by an explosive.

E. The provisions of this Section prohibiting the possession of firearms and carrying concealed weapons by persons who have been convicted of domestic abuse battery shall not apply to any person who has not been convicted of domestic abuse battery for a period of ten years from the date of completion of sentence, probation, parole, or suspension of sentence."

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, line 20, after "R.S. 46:2136.3" and before "hereby" change "2140(A)(5) are" to "is"

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, at the end of line 28, delete the period "." and insert the following:

"if both of the following occur:

(1) The permanent injunction or protective order includes a finding that the person subject to the permanent injunction or protective order represents a credible threat to the physical safety of a family member or household member.

(2) The permanent injunction or protective order informs the person subject to the permanent injunction or protective order that the person is prohibited from possessing a firearm pursuant to the provisions of 18 U.S.C. 922(g)(8) and R.S. 46:2136.3."

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, delete lines 6 through 17 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Section 3. The Judicial Administrator's Office of the Louisiana Supreme Court is hereby directed to amend the Uniform Abuse Prevention Order to include a reference to R.S. 46:2136.3, enacted by the provisions of this Act, to those portions of the order which notify and warn the person against whom the order is issued of the federal prohibitions relative to firearms and ammunition."

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 820—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE HUVAL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:1318(D), relative to fire insurance policies; to define "fire insurance policy"; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 820 by Representative Huval

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 9, after "1992" insert a comma "," and "and shall not apply to a loss covered by a blanket-form policy of insurance"

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 874—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STUART BISHOP

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 36:8.1, relative to reporting requirements of various state agencies of the executive branch; to require an annual report to the legislature of all civil, legal actions filed by an agency; to provide for the content of such reports; to provide exceptions thereto; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 874 by Representative Stuart Bishop

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 15, change "Such" to "Each such"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 17, change "name" to "names"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 18, change "it appears" to "they appear"



AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, at the beginning of line 5, delete "and the monetary" and insert "or the state and the"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 6, after "agency" and before the comma ";" insert "or the state"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, between lines 16 and 17, insert "(22) Office of the lieutenant governor."

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, line 20, delete "matters that come before an administrative law judge."

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, line 21, after "judgment" and before "of" insert "or order"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, between lines 23 and 24, insert the following:

"(2) "Court" or "court of law" means any court authorized by Article V of the Constitution of Louisiana."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, at the beginning of line 24, change "(2)" to "(3)"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, at the beginning of line 26, change "(3)" to "(4)"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 3, line 27, after "agency" and before "or who" insert "or the state"

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Tim Burns, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 879—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE THIBAUT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:691.6(A)(2) and (J)(2) and 691.10(D), and R.S. 44:4.1(B)(11), relative to insurance holding companies; to provide that annual registration statements are due on April 30 for the previous calendar year; to provide an exemption from the Public Records Law; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Insurance.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Insurance to Original House Bill No. 879 by Representative Thibaut

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete line 2 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"To amend and reenact R.S. 22:691.6(A)(2) and (J)(2) and 691.10(D), and R.S."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete line 5 in its entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the beginning of line 6, delete "provide"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, delete line 9 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"Section 1. R.S. 22:691.6(A)(2) and (J)(2) and 691.10(D) are hereby"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete lines 13 through 28 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, delete lines 1 through 3 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, delete lines 5 through 20 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Cromer, the above bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and recommitted to the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 910—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CONNICK  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 30:2531.2, relative to the penalties for littering; to prohibit the disposal of cigarette butts from vehicles; to provide a fine for discharging cigarette butts from a motor vehicle; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1075** (Substitute for House Bill No. 910 by

Representative Connick)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE CONNICK  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:2522(4) and to enact R.S. 30:2531(A)(3), relative to litter; to provide for the definition of litter; to provide for penalties for cigarettes and cigarette butts littering; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Dove, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1075 by Rep. Connick, on behalf of the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment, as a substitute for House Bill No. 910 by Rep. Connick.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 944—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE FANNIN AND SENATOR KOSTELKA  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:183.1(A) and (C)(2), 183.2, 183.3(A)(2), (B), (C), and (D), and 2925 and to enact R.S.

17:183.1(D), relative to the high school career option program; to provide relative to requirements for a career major and related course work; to provide that a career diploma be considered and recognized by all public postsecondary education institutions and given the same status as a regular diploma for purposes of the school and district accountability system; to provide relative to conditions to be met by a student pursuing a career major curriculum; to delete the requirement for parental consent for a student to pursue such curriculum; to delete certain requirements relative to pupil progression plans; to provide relative to requirements for Individual Graduation Plans for students; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 944 by Representative Fannin

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, delete lines 6 through 29 in their entirety and on page 5, delete lines 1 through 7 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(a) At least four English credits, including English I, English II, and two additional courses ~~from among the following: English III, English IV, AP or IB English courses, Business English, Technical Writing, or comparable Louisiana Technical College comparable or identical to English~~ courses offered by the Louisiana Technical College; Jump Start regional teams as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education.

(b) At least four mathematics credits, including Algebra I, Algebra I Part One, and Algebra I Part Two, or an applied or hybrid Algebra course, and ~~three additional applied or hybrid~~ mathematics courses ~~from among the following: Geometry, Math Essentials, Financial Literacy, Business Math, Algebra II, Algebra III, Advanced Math - Functions and Statistics, Advanced Math - Pre-Calculus, Pre-Calculus, or comparable Louisiana Technical College comparable or identical to~~ courses offered by the Louisiana Technical College ~~as needed to fulfill the mathematics course requirements~~ Jump Start regional teams as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. Integrated Mathematics I, II, and III may be substituted for Algebra I, Geometry, and Algebra II, and shall equal three mathematics credits.

(c) At least ~~three two~~ science credits, including one ~~unit credit~~ of Biology and two additional courses ~~selected from a list of science courses related to the student's chosen career major as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education among the following: Chemistry I, Earth Science, Environmental Science, Physical Science, Agriscience I and Agriscience II (one credit combined), AP or IB Science courses.~~

(d) At least ~~three two~~ social studies credits, including one credit ~~from among the following: U.S. History, AP U.S. History, or IB U.S. History; one-half credit from among the following: Government, AP U.S. Government and Politics: Comparative, or AP U.S. Government and Politics: United States; and one-half credit from among the following: Economics, AP Macroeconomics, or AP Microeconomics. One credit of Civics may be substituted for any two of the one-half credit courses specified in this Subparagraph~~ unit of American History and one additional course selected from a list of social studies courses approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. Each student shall successfully complete

~~coursework in Civics and Free Enterprise, as provided in R.S. 17:274.1.~~

(e) At least two credits in Health and Physical Education, including one credit of Physical Education I, one-half credit from among the following: Physical Education II, Marching Band, Extracurricular Sports, Cheering, or Dance Teams; and one-half credit of Health Education.

(f) At least ~~seven nine~~ credits in ~~career and technical education courses with end-of-course testing as appropriate and approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education, including at least one-half credit in a career readiness course and one credit in a computer applications course. Courses shall be selected to prepare a student for postsecondary education or a career. Jump Start course sequences, workplace experiences, and credentials. A student shall complete a regionally designed series of Career and Technical Education Jump Start coursework and workplace-based learning experiences leading to a statewide or regional Jump Start credential. This shall include courses and workplace experiences specific to the credential, courses related to foundational career skills requirements in Jump Start, and other courses, including career electives, that the Jump Start regional team determines are appropriate for the career major.~~

(g) Additional electives or career and technical education courses required by the city, parish, or other local public school board as approved by the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 5, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

"(3) A student pursuing a career diploma shall take the WorkKeys test or may choose to take the American College Test."

On motion of Rep. Carter, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 946—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3913, relative to student information; to limit the type of information to be collected on students; to prohibit the collection of certain information; to prohibit the transmittal or sharing of student information; to provide for parental access to certain student information; to provide for student identification numbers; to provide definitions; to provide criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Education.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1076** (Substitute for House Bill No. 946 by Representative Schroder)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHRODER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3913 and 3996(B)(34), relative to student information; to limit the type of information to be collected on students; to prohibit the collection of certain information; to prohibit the sharing of student information; to provide exceptions; to provide for access by parents and specified others to certain student information stored in public school computer systems; to provide for student identification numbers; to provide definitions; to provide criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1076 by Rep. Schroder, on behalf of the Committee on Education, as a substitute for House Bill No. 946 by Rep. Schroder.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 975—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE WESLEY BISHOP  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:1970.24(B)(1)(a)(ii)(bb), relative to the New Orleans Center for Creative Arts; to provide with respect to the membership of its board of directors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 975 by Representative Wesley Bishop

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 17, after "(bb)" delete "The" and insert "An employee of the state Department of Education appointed by the"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 17, after "education" insert a period "." and delete the remainder of the line

On motion of Rep. Carter, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1016—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:287, relative to high school diplomas; to provide for a State Seal of Biliteracy to be affixed to the diplomas or transcripts of students who meet certain academic eligibility criteria relative to language proficiency; to provide relative to purpose and legislative intent; to require the state superintendent of education to prepare the seal; to provide for the voluntary participation of public school governing authorities; to provide relative to rules and regulations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Carter, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1027—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEBAS  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:34.8, relative to battery; to create the crime of battery of an emergency medical provider; to provide for the elements of the offense; to provide for criminal penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1077** (Substitute for House Bill No. 1027 by Representative LeBas)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVES LEBAS, ARMES, AND BILLIOT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:327(A)(2) and to enact R.S. 14:34.8, relative to crimes involving certain medical personnel; to create the crime of battery of emergency room personnel, emergency services personnel, or a healthcare professional; to provide for criminal penalties; to provide for definitions; to amend the crime of obstructing a fireman to include certain emergency services personnel; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Lopinto, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1077 by Rep. LeBas, on behalf of the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice, as a substitute for House Bill No. 1027 by Rep. LeBas.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on third reading and final passage were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 448—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE RITCHIE  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 8:75(C) and (D) and to enact R.S. 8:75(E), relative to the powers of the Louisiana Cemetery Board; to authorize the board to impose fines upon natural or juridical persons; to provide the amount of such fines; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Ritchie moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Moreno
Abramson	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Anders	Greene	Norton
Arnold	Guillory	Ortego
Badon	Harris	Pearson
Barras	Harrison	Pierre
Barrow	Havard	Ponti
Berthelot	Hazel	Pope
Billiot	Henry	Price
Bishop, S.	Hill	Pugh
Broadwater	Hodges	Reynolds
Brossett	Hoffmann	Richard
Brown	Honore	Ritchie
Burford	Howard	Schexnayder
Burns, H.	Hunter	Schroder
Burns, T.	Huval	Seabaugh
Burrell	Ivey	Shadoin
Carmody	Jackson	Simon
Carter	James	Smith
Chaney	Jefferson	St. Germain
Connick	Johnson	Stokes
Cox	Jones	Talbot
Cromer	Lambert	Thierry
Danahay	Landry, T.	Whitney

Page 20 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

Dixon	LeBas	Williams, A.
Dove	Leger	Williams, P.
Fannin	Leopold	Willmott
Foil	Lorusso	Woodruff
Franklin	Mack	
Gaines	Miller	
Total - 88		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Adams	Guinn	Morris, Jim
Armes	Hensgens	Pylant
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Robideaux
Champagne	Landry, N.	Thibaut
Edwards	Lopinto	Thompson
Geymann	Montoucet	
Total - 17		

The Chair declared the above bill, having received a two-thirds vote of the elected members, was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Ritchie moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 462—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BERTHELOT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 35:393, relative to ex officio notaries for the Department of Public Safety and Corrections; to provide for the appointment of certain persons as ex officio notaries; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Berthelot moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Miller
Abramson	Gisclair	Moreno
Anders	Greene	Morris, Jay
Arnold	Guillory	Norton
Badon	Guinn	Ortego
Barras	Harris	Pearson
Barrow	Harrison	Pierre
Berthelot	Havard	Ponti
Billiot	Hazel	Pope
Bishop, S.	Henry	Price
Broadwater	Hensgens	Pugh
Brossett	Hill	Pylant
Brown	Hodges	Reynolds
Burford	Hoffmann	Richard
Burns, H.	Honore	Ritchie
Burns, T.	Howard	Schexnayder
Burrell	Hunter	Schroder
Carmody	Huval	Seabaugh
Carter	Ivey	Shadoin
Champagne	Jackson	Simon
Chaney	James	Smith
Connick	Jefferson	St. Germain
Cox	Johnson	Stokes
Cromer	Jones	Talbot
Danahay	Lambert	Thibaut

Dixon	Landry, T.	Thierry
Dove	LeBas	Whitney
Fannin	Leger	Williams, A.
Foil	Leopold	Williams, P.
Franklin	Lorusso	Woodruff
Gaines	Mack	
Total - 92		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Adams	Hollis	Robideaux
Armes	Landry, N.	Thompson
Bishop, W.	Lopinto	Willmott
Edwards	Montoucet	
Geymann	Morris, Jim	
Total - 13		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Berthelot moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 478—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MILLER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 19:147, 150, 151, and 159, relative to expropriation; to provide relative to certain expropriation procedures; to provide for final judgments for purposes of immediate appeal; to provide for the delay within which to request a jury trial; to provide relative to appeals; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Barrow, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Barrow on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 478 by Representative Miller

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 13, following "R.S. 19:146" and before the end of the line, change ";" to "."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 14, following "claims" and before the end of the line, change ";" to "."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, line 8, following "expropriated" and before the end of the line, change ";" to "."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 3, line 10, following "property" and before the end of the line, change ";" to "."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, line 11, following "itemized" and before the end of the line, change ";" to "."

On motion of Rep. Barrow, the amendments were adopted.  
Rep. Miller moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Moreno
Abramson	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Anders	Greene	Norton
Arnold	Guillory	Ortego
Badon	Guinn	Pearson
Barras	Harris	Pierre
Barrow	Harrison	Ponti
Berthelot	Havard	Pope
Billiot	Hazel	Price
Broadwater	Hensgens	Pugh
Brossett	Hill	Pylant
Brown	Hodges	Reynolds
Burford	Hoffmann	Richard
Burns, H.	Honore	Ritchie
Burns, T.	Howard	Schexnayder
Burrell	Hunter	Schroder
Carmody	Huval	Seabaugh
Carter	Ivey	Simon
Champagne	James	Smith
Chaney	Jefferson	St. Germain
Connick	Johnson	Stokes
Cox	Jones	Thibaut
Cromer	Lambert	Thierry
Danahay	Landry, T.	Whitney
Dixon	LeBas	Williams, A.
Dove	Leger	Williams, P.
Fannin	Leopold	Willmott
Foil	Lorusso	Woodruff
Franklin	Mack	
Gaines	Miller	

Total - 88

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Henry	Morris, Jim
Armes	Hollis	Robideaux
Bishop, S.	Jackson	Shadoin
Bishop, W.	Landry, N.	Talbot
Edwards	Lopinto	Thompson
Geymann	Montoucet	

Total - 17

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Miller moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 543—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ADAMS

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:318(H), relative to audible and visual signals on certain vehicles; to allow all publicly owned fire department vehicles to be equipped with blue colored electric lights; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Terry Landry sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Adams to Engrossed House Bill No. 543 by Representative Adams

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 1, line 12, after "visual lights." delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 13 and 14 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Terry Landry, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Terry Landry moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Montoucet
Abramson	Gisclair	Moreno
Anders	Greene	Morris, Jay
Arnold	Guillory	Norton
Badon	Guinn	Ortego
Barras	Harris	Pearson
Barrow	Harrison	Pierre
Berthelot	Havard	Ponti
Billiot	Hazel	Pope
Broadwater	Hensgens	Price
Brossett	Hill	Pugh
Brown	Hodges	Pylant
Burford	Hoffmann	Reynolds
Burns, H.	Honore	Richard
Burns, T.	Howard	Ritchie
Burrell	Hunter	Schexnayder
Carmody	Huval	Schroder
Carter	Ivey	Seabaugh
Champagne	Jackson	Shadoin
Chaney	James	Smith
Connick	Jefferson	St. Germain
Cox	Johnson	Stokes
Cromer	Jones	Thibaut
Danahay	Lambert	Thierry
Dixon	Landry, T.	Whitney
Dove	LeBas	Williams, A.
Fannin	Leopold	Williams, P.
Foil	Lorusso	Willmott
Franklin	Mack	Woodruff
Gaines	Miller	

Total - 89

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Henry	Robideaux
Armes	Hollis	Simon
Bishop, S.	Landry, N.	Talbot
Bishop, W.	Leger	Thompson
Edwards	Lopinto	
Geymann	Morris, Jim	

Total - 16

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Page 22 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

Rep. Terry Landry moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 567—
BY REPRESENTATIVE SHADOIN
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 9:4835(A) and (B), relative to the filing of security in certain civil proceedings under the Private Works Act; to provide for the form of security to be filed; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Shadoin moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns of names: Mr. Speaker, Abramson, Anders, Arnold, Badon, Barras, Barrow, Berthelot, Billiot, Bishop, S., Broadwater, Brossett, Brown, Burford, Burns, H., Burns, T., Burrell, Carmody, Carter, Champagne, Chaney, Connick, Cox, Cromer, Danahay, Dixon, Dove, Fannin, Foil, Franklin, Total - 90

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns of names: Adams, Arnes, Bishop, W., Edwards, Geymann, Total - 15; Greene, Hollis, Landry, N., Leger, Lopinto; Montoucet, Morris, Jim, Robideaux, Thompson, Williams, A.

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Shadoin moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 573—
BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMPSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Civil Code Article 1493(E), relative to forced heirs; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Ponti, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Ponti gave notice of Rep. Thompson's intention to call House Bill No. 573 from the calendar on Monday, March 31, 2014.

HOUSE BILL NO. 771—
BY REPRESENTATIVE RITCHIE
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 8:203, 456(B), and 505(B), relative to cemetery authorities; to provide for the requirement of such authorities; to provide for a final accounting of cemetery trusts; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Ritchie moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns of names: Mr. Speaker, Abramson, Anders, Arnold, Badon, Barrow, Berthelot, Billiot, Bishop, S., Broadwater, Brossett, Brown, Burford, Burns, H., Burns, T., Burrell, Carmody, Carter, Champagne, Chaney, Connick, Cox, Cromer, Dixon, Dove, Fannin, Foil, Franklin, Garofalo, Total - 90; Gisclair, Guillory, Guinn, Harris, Harrison, Havard, Hazel, Henry, Hensgens, Hill, Hodges, Hoffmann, Honore, Howard, Hunter, Huval, Ivey, Jackson, James, Jefferson, Johnson, Jones, Lambert, Landry, T., LeBas, Leger, Leopold, Lorusso, Mack, Miller; Moreno, Morris, Jay, Norton, Ortego, Pearson, Pierre, Ponti, Pope, Price, Pugh, Pylant, Reynolds, Richard, Ritchie, Schexnayder, Schroder, Seabaugh, Shadoin, Simon, Smith, St. Germain, Stokes, Talbot, Thibaut, Thierry, Whitney, Williams, A., Williams, P., Willmott, Woodruff

NAYS

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Edwards	Lopinto
Armes	Geymann	Montoucet
Barras	Greene	Morris, Jim
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Robideaux
Danahay	Landry, N.	Thompson

Total - 15

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Ritchie moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 793—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE ST. GERMAIN  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 38:3074(A), (B)(3), (4), and (5), (C), and (D)(introductory paragraph), to enact R.S. 38:3073(14), and to repeal R.S. 38:3074(D)(1) through (9) and Act No. 177 of the 2013 Regular Session of the Legislature, relative to the Capital Area Groundwater Conservation District; to provide for the membership and terms of the board of commissioners; to provide for vacancies; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Barrow, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Barrow on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 793 by Representative St. Germain

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 2, line 15, following "of" and before "three", change "said" to "the"

On motion of Rep. Barrow, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. St. Germain moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Abramson	Guillory	Norton
Anders	Guinn	Ortego
Arnold	Harris	Pearson
Badon	Harrison	Pierre
Barrow	Hazel	Ponti
Berthelot	Henry	Pope
Billiot	Hensgens	Price
Bishop, S.	Hill	Pugh
Broadwater	Hodges	Pylant
Brossett	Hoffmann	Reynolds
Brown	Honore	Richard
Burford	Howard	Ritchie
Burns, H.	Hunter	Schexnayder
Burns, T.	Huval	Schroder
Burrell	Ivey	Seabaugh

Carmody	Jackson	Simon
Carter	James	Smith
Champagne	Jefferson	St. Germain
Chaney	Johnson	Stokes
Connick	Jones	Talbot
Cox	Lambert	Thibaut
Cromer	Landry, T.	Thierry
Dixon	LeBas	Whitney
Dove	Leger	Williams, A.
Fannin	Leopold	Williams, P.
Foil	Lorusso	Willmott
Franklin	Mack	Woodruff
Gaines	Miller	
Garofalo	Moreno	

Total - 88

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Geymann	Montoucet
Armes	Greene	Morris, Jim
Barras	Havard	Robideaux
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Shadoin
Danahay	Landry, N.	Thompson
Edwards	Lopinto	

Total - 17

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. St. Germain moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 844—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE PONTI  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 9:3571.3, relative to credit reports of protected persons; to provide for prohibitions on the release of credit information of protected persons; to provide for definitions; to provide for exceptions; to provide for damages; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Ponti sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Ponti to Engrossed House Bill No. 844 by Representative Ponti

**AMENDMENT NO. 1**

On page 1, line 19, after "following" delete "under Subparagraph (a) or (b)"

**AMENDMENT NO. 2**

On page 2, line 18, change "May not be" to "Is not"

**AMENDMENT NO. 3**

On page 3, line 13, after "by" insert "any of the following"

**AMENDMENT NO. 4**

On page 3, line 22, change "purpose" to "person"

# Page 24 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, delete line 24 and insert in lieu thereof: "on the credit report of a protected person if the protected person's representative does all of the following to request a protected person security freeze pursuant to this Section:"

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, delete lines 25 through 27

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, line 28, change "(a)" to "(1)" and after "request" insert "for a protected person security freeze"

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, line 29, after "contact" delete "and"

## AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 4, line 1, change "(b)" to "(2)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 4, line 3, change "(c)" to "(3)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 4, line 5, change "(d)" to "(4)" and change "Subsection J" to "Subsection I"

## AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 4, line 8, after "request" insert "for a protected person security freeze"

## AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 4, line 11, after "E." insert "(1)" and after "request" insert "for a protected person security freeze"

## AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 4, line 13, after "freeze" insert "on the protected person's credit report"

## AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 4, between lines 13 and 14, insert the following:

"(2) A protected person security freeze placed pursuant to this Subsection shall remain in effect until either of the following:

(a) The protected person or the protected person's representative requests the credit reporting agency to remove the protected person security freeze in accordance with Subsection G of this Section.

(b) The protected person security freeze is removed in accordance with Subsection J of this Section."

## AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 4, line 15, change "Subsection H or K" to "Subsection G or J"

## AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 4, delete lines 18 through 24 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 4, line 25, change "H." to "G."

## AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 4, line 27, delete "shall:" and insert in lieu thereof: "shall submit a request for the removal of the protected person security freeze to the credit reporting agency at the address or other point of contact in the manner specified by the credit reporting agency."

## AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 5, delete lines 1 through 4 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 5, line 5, change "(a)" to "(1)" and after "person" insert a comma "," and "the protected person shall provide both of the following"

## AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 5, line 6, change "(i)" to "(a)" and change "Proof" to "Documentation"

## AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 5, line 8, change "proof" to "documentation" and change "majority" to "sixteen years"

## AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 5, line 10, change "(ii)" to "(b)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 5, line 11, change "(b)" to "(2)" and after "person" insert a comma "," and "the representative of the protected person shall provide all of the following"

## AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 5, line 12, change "(i)" to "(a)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 5, line 14, change "(ii)" to "(b)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 5, delete line 15 and insert in lieu thereof: "(c) Payment to the credit reporting agency a fee as provided in Subsection I of"

## AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 5, line 17, change "L." to "H."

## AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 5, line 18, change "Subsection H" to "Subsection G"

## AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 5, delete lines 20 through 22 in their entirety

## AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 5, line 23, change "(2)" to "I.(1)"



AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 5, line 24, after "freeze" insert "pursuant to this Section"

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 5, line 25, change "(3)" to "(2)" and after "Paragraph" change "(2)" to "(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 5, line 26, after "if" insert "either of the following apply"

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 5, line 27, after "representative" insert "does both of the following"

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 5, line 28, change "Has obtained" to "Obtains"

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 6, line 6, change "K." to "J."

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 6, line 10, change "L." to "K."

On motion of Rep. Ponti, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Ponti moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Abramson	Guillory	Norton
Anders	Guinn	Ortego
Arnes	Harris	Pearson
Arnold	Harrison	Pierre
Badon	Havard	Ponti
Barrow	Hazel	Pope
Berthelot	Henry	Price
Billiot	Hensgens	Pugh
Bishop, S.	Hill	Pylant
Broadwater	Hodges	Reynolds
Brossett	Hoffmann	Richard
Brown	Honore	Ritchie
Burford	Howard	Schexnayder
Burns, H.	Hunter	Schroder
Burns, T.	Huval	Seabaugh
Burrell	Ivey	Shadoin
Carmody	Jackson	Simon
Carter	James	Smith
Champagne	Jefferson	St. Germain
Chaney	Johnson	Stokes
Connick	Jones	Talbot
Cox	Lambert	Thibaut
Cromer	Landry, T.	Thierry
Dixon	LeBas	Whitney
Dove	Leger	Williams, A.
Fannin	Leopold	Williams, P.
Foil	Mack	Willmott
Franklin	Miller	Woodruff
Gaines	Montoucet	
Garofalo	Moreno	
Total - 91		

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Geymann	Lorusso
Barras	Greene	Morris, Jim
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Robideaux
Danahay	Landry, N.	Thompson
Edwards	Lopinto	
Total - 14		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Ponti moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 869—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE PONTI

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:1437(C)(2)(c), (5)(b), and (6)(a)(ii), relative to licensing by the Louisiana Real Estate Commission; to provide for changes to the post-license educational requirements of real estate brokers and salespersons; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Ponti, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Ponti gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 869 from the calendar on Thursday, April 3, 2014.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 893—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:706.2(A)(1), 707.5(D)(1), 1728(D)(6), 1728.2(D)(2) and (G)(1), 1728.3(D)(1)(b) and (F)(1)(a), and 1728.4(C)(5), relative to vehicle inspections; to provide that a peace officer can conduct physical inspections of a vehicle; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Schexnayder moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Moreno
Abramson	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Anders	Greene	Norton
Arnold	Guillory	Ortego
Badon	Guinn	Pearson
Barras	Harris	Pierre
Barrow	Harrison	Ponti
Berthelot	Havard	Pope
Billiot	Hazel	Price
Bishop, S.	Hensgens	Pugh
Broadwater	Hill	Pylant
Brossett	Hodges	Reynolds

Page 26 HOUSE

12th Day's Proceedings - March 27, 2014

Brown	Hoffmann	Richard
Burford	Honore	Ritchie
Burns, H.	Howard	Schexnayder
Burns, T.	Hunter	Schroder
Burrell	Huval	Seabaugh
Carmody	Ivey	Shadoin
Carter	Jackson	Simon
Champagne	James	Smith
Chaney	Johnson	St. Germain
Connick	Jones	Stokes
Cox	Lambert	Talbot
Cromer	Landry, T.	Thibaut
Danahay	LeBas	Thierry
Dixon	Leger	Whitney
Dove	Lorusso	Williams, A.
Fannin	Mack	Williams, P.
Foil	Miller	Willmott
Franklin	Montoucet	Woodruff

Total - 90

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Adams	Geymann	Leopold
Armes	Henry	Lopinto
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Morris, Jim
Edwards	Jefferson	Robideaux
Gaines	Landry, N.	Thompson

Total - 15

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Schexnayder moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 929—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BADON  
AN ACT

To enact Chapter 16-A of Title 32 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 32:1750.1, relative to motor vehicles; to provide relative to motor vehicles parked on private property; to provide relative to the immobilization of such vehicles by booting; to provide relative to parishes and municipalities that provide for the regulation of motor vehicle booting; to provide relative to persons who operate a booting business; to provide for minimum standards; to provide for restrictions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Barrow, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Barrow on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 929 by Representative Badon

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, line 22, following "by" and before "Subsection" change "the" to "this"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 4, following "vehicle" and before "a" delete the "1"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, line 6, following "and" and before "the" delete "stating"

On motion of Rep. Barrow, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Badon moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Miller
Abramson	Gisclair	Moreno
Anders	Greene	Morris, Jay
Arnold	Guillory	Norton
Badon	Guinn	Ortego
Barras	Harris	Pearson
Barrow	Harrison	Pierre
Berthelot	Havard	Ponti
Bishop, S.	Hazel	Pope
Broadwater	Henry	Price
Brossett	Hensgens	Pugh
Burford	Hill	Pylant
Burns, H.	Hodges	Reynolds
Burns, T.	Hoffmann	Richard
Burrell	Honore	Ritchie
Carmody	Howard	Schexnayder
Carter	Hunter	Schroder
Champagne	Huval	Seabaugh
Chaney	Ivey	Shadoin
Connick	Jackson	Simon
Cox	Jefferson	St. Germain
Cromer	Johnson	Stokes
Danahay	Jones	Talbot
Dixon	Landry, T.	Thierry
Dove	LeBas	Whitney
Fannin	Leger	Williams, A.
Foil	Leopold	Williams, P.
Franklin	Lorusso	Willmott
Gaines	Mack	Woodruff

Total - 87

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Adams	Geymann	Montoucet
Armes	Hollis	Morris, Jim
Billiot	James	Robideaux
Bishop, W.	Lambert	Smith
Brown	Landry, N.	Thibaut
Edwards	Lopinto	Thompson

Total - 18

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Badon moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**Consent to Correct a Vote Record**

Rep. Cromer requested the House consent to correct his vote on final passage of House Bill No. 929 from nay to yea, which consent was unanimously granted.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1002—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE RITCHIE

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:831(60) and (84), 842, 845(introductory paragraph) and (8), 846(A)(introductory paragraph) and (11)(a), 854(B)(5), and 877(B)(1)(a)(xi) and (b)(ii), to enact R.S. 37:831(88) and 854(B)(6), and to repeal R.S. 37:831(81), relative to embalmers and funeral directors; to define certain terms; to provide for qualifications for a funeral director license; to provide for qualifications for an embalmer and funeral director license; to provide for licensure by endorsement; to provide for qualifications for certain temporary licenses; to provide for the licensure of a funeral directing and embalming establishment; to provide for certain fees; to provide for grounds for suspension or revocation of licenses; to provide for exemptions from continuing education requirements; to require funeral directors to sign and witness signatures for cremations; to repeal the definition of "student intern"; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Ritchie sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Ritchie to Engrossed House Bill No. 1002 by Representative Ritchie

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, line 18, after "weeks," insert "has" and after "funerals" insert a comma ",."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, at the beginning of line 19, before "completed" insert "has"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 7, line 6, after "following" insert "requirements"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 7, line 13, after "director" delete "and" and continuing on line 14, delete "embalmer"

On motion of Rep. Ritchie, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Ritchie moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Moreno
Abramson	Gisclair	Morris, Jay
Anders	Guillory	Norton
Arnold	Guinn	Ortego
Badon	Harris	Pearson
Barras	Harrison	Pierre
Barrow	Havard	Ponti
Berthelot	Hazel	Pope
Billiot	Henry	Price
Bishop, S.	Hensgens	Pugh
Broadwater	Hill	Pylant
Brossett	Hodges	Reynolds
Brown	Hoffmann	Richard

Burford	Honore	Ritchie
Burns, H.	Howard	Robideaux
Burns, T.	Hunter	Schexnayder
Burrell	Huval	Schroder
Carmody	Ivey	Seabaugh
Carter	Jackson	Shadoin
Champagne	James	Simon
Chaney	Jefferson	Smith
Connick	Johnson	St. Germain
Cox	Jones	Stokes
Cromer	Lambert	Talbot
Danahay	Landry, T.	Thibaut
Dixon	LeBas	Thierry
Dove	Leger	Whitney
Fannin	Leopold	Williams, A.
Foil	Lorusso	Williams, P.
Franklin	Mack	Willmott
Gaines	Miller	Woodruff

Total - 93

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Adams	Geymann	Lopinto
Armes	Greene	Montoucet
Bishop, W.	Hollis	Morris, Jim
Edwards	Landry, N.	Thompson
Total - 12		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Ritchie moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Connick gave notice of Rep. Lopinto's intention to call House Bill No. 106 from the calendar on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, *vice* Wednesday, April 2, 2014.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Gaines gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 898 from the calendar on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, *vice* Wednesday, April 2, 2014.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Leger, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications at this time.

**Petitions, Memorials, and Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

**Message from the Senate**

**SENATE BILLS**

March 27, 2014

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 30, 36, 64, 98, 154, 261, 305, 319, 337, 418, 433, and 476

Respectfully submitted,

GLENN A. KOEPP  
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions  
on First Reading**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**SENATE BILL NO. 30—**  
BY SENATOR CORTEZ

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 11:446(F), 450(B), and 471.1(G), relative to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System; to specify procedures related to payment for and of benefits; to provide for options, contributions, and eligibility; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 36—**  
BY SENATOR BROWN

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3983.1, relative to charter schools; to require a chartering group to notify certain legislators upon submission of an initial charter school proposal or application; to specify the information to be included in such notification; to require additional notification regarding the disposition of such submission; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 64—**  
BY SENATOR CORTEZ

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 2:604(6) and (7) and 604.1(A)(1)(introductory paragraph), (2), (4) and (B) and to enact R.S. 2:604.2, relative to airport authorities; to expand the powers of the Lafayette Airport Commission to include economic development purposes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 98—**  
BY SENATORS NEVERS AND THOMPSON  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:3048.1(A)(1)(b)(ii)(bb), (c)(ii)(bb), and (d)(ii)(bb), relative to the Taylor Opportunity Program for Students; to provide with respect to the method used to calculate the grade point average required for program awards; to provide that a five-point scale shall be used to calculate the grade point average for certain honors and gifted and talented courses; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 154—**  
BY SENATOR LONG

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:327(A)(2) and 412(A)(4) and (6) and to repeal R.S. 56:327.1, relative to the importation of certain fish; to provide for importation regulations and licensing requirements; to provide certain size requirements for

importation; to exempt certain persons from the notification provisions; to remove certain provisions relative to the importation of aquaculturally raised fish and cultured fish; to provide terms, conditions, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 261—**  
BY SENATORS JOHNS, MORRISH AND JOHN SMITH AND REPRESENTATIVES DANAHAY, FRANKLIN, GEYMANN, GUINN AND KLECKLEY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 34:202(A), relative to the Lake Charles Harbor and Terminal District; to provide relative to the board of commissioners; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 305—**  
BY SENATOR CHABERT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 49:214.6.8 and to repeal R.S. 38:331, relative to coastal protection and restoration; to provide relative to the Coastal Louisiana Levee Consortium as an advisory commission of the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority Board; to provide relative to duties, purposes, and membership; to provide certain terms, conditions, procedures, and requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 319—**  
BY SENATORS DONAHUE AND THOMPSON  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 24:516.1, relative to reports of the legislative auditor; to provide for certain annual audit reports to be filed with the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 337—**  
BY SENATORS APPEL AND THOMPSON  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3129.2, relative to public postsecondary education; to provide for the development of an outcomes-based funding formula for postsecondary education; to provide relative to formula components and a time line for implementation of the formula; to provide for submission to the Board of Regents; to provide for reporting requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 418—**  
BY SENATOR GARY SMITH  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:501(C)(1) and (2) and to enact R.S. 47:501(D), relative to registration of vehicles; to provide for required credentials for initial and first renewal of registration of a motor vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer; to provide for penalties for fraudulent execution of required credentials; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 433—**  
BY SENATORS WHITE AND ERDEY AND REPRESENTATIVES HODGES AND IVEY  
AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state property; to authorize the transfer of certain state property in East Baton Rouge Parish from the Department of Health and Hospitals to

the Central Community School System of East Baton Rouge Parish; to provide for the property description; to provide for reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 476—**

BY SENATOR GARY SMITH

**AN ACT**

To enact R.S. 40:1462 and 1463, relative to driver training; to provide for bond requirements; to provide for cease and desist orders; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Carmody, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

**Introduction of Resolutions,  
House and House Concurrent**

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 43—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CARMODY

**A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To authorize and request the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners to study whether authorization to perform surgical procedures on the human eye could be extended to health professionals other than physicians in a manner that ensures an adequate level of patient safety, and to report its findings to the legislative committees on health and welfare along with any necessary and appropriate policy recommendations.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**Introduction of House Bills  
and Joint Resolutions**

The following named members introduced the following House Bills and Joint Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1078—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE WHITNEY

**AN ACT**

To appropriate funds out of the General Fund of the state of Louisiana for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 to be used to pay the consent judgment in the suit entitled "Chad A. Trahan v. Progressive Security Insurance Company, Jamie Linson, Terrebonne Parish Consolidated Government and State of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development"; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Arnold, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Judiciary to consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

House Bill No. 154

**Suspension of the Rules**

Rep. Abramson moved to suspend the rules to permit the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to meet on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, *vice* Monday, March 31, 2014, which motion was agreed to.

**Leave of Absence**

Rep. Nancy Landry - 1/2 day

**Adjournment**

On motion of Rep. Billiot, at 9:59 A.M., the House agreed to adjourn until Monday, March 31, 2014, at 2:00 P.M.

The Speaker of the House declared the House adjourned until 2:00 P.M., Monday, March 31, 2014.

ALFRED W. SPEER  
Clerk of the House

